ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 4, 2009
10: 03 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Representati ve Pete Petersen

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW BY ALASKA PUBLIC COFFI CES COW SSI ON (APOC): ELECTRONI C
FI LI NG

- HEARD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 8

Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
l[imting appropriations from certain mneral revenue, relating
to the bal anced budget account, and relating to an appropriation
[imt.

- DI SCUSSED, BUT NOT SCHEDULED
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

PATTY WARE

Regul ati on of Lobbyi ng

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview regarding APQOC s
el ectronic filing system

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2009



ANNETTE KREI TZER, Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the APOC overvi ew.

HOLLY ROBERSON HI LL, Director

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Ofered information during the overview
regarding APOC s electronic filing system

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 03: 04 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 10:03 a.m Representatives Johnson, Seaton,
W son, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representative Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

OVERVI EW BY ALASKA PUBLIC CFFICES COW SSION (APQOC): ELECTRONI C
FI LI NG

10: 03: 08 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the only order of business was an
Overview by the Alaska Public Ofices Conmm ssion (APCC):
El ectronic Filing

10: 04: 00 AM

The conmm ttee took a brief at-ease at 10:04 a.m

10: 04: 48 AM

PATTY WARE, Regulation of Lobbying, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), Departnment of Administration, thanked the
commttee for the opportunity to provide a status report, by
neans of a slide presentation, regarding APOC s electronic

filing program known as “lInsight.” As shown on slide 2, she
stated that Insight is an on-line filing and web-based
application that will allow anyone required to submt financial
di sclosure forms to be in conpliance with APOC s | aws. Thi s

i ncl udes canpaign reports and | egislative financial disclosures.
Lobbyi ng reports are done by paper, she noted.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 4, 2009



10: 06: 09 AM

M5. WARE said the Insight nmethod of filing wll be available
anywhere there is conputer access, and it allows financial
disclosure to the public to be mde nore in “real tine.”
Currently, when a legislative financial disclosure is filed via
paper, it needs to be scanned in by staff in order to be posted
to the Internet.

10: 07: 32 AM

M5. WARE, in response to Representative WIson, offered her
belief that currently Representative WIlson files to APCC using
a series of Excel spreadsheets that are then sent to APCC

el ectronically. In this system there would not be any mddle
step, because information would be entered “into the application
that is then stored.” She related that a denonstration of the

system was forthcom ng.

10: 08: 43 AM

M5. WARE, in response to Representative Seaton, said ultimtely,
the Insight electronic filing system wll be used for *“all
di sclosure fornms that go to APCC.~ She said, “Right now, and

this norning, in ternms of the denonstration, the nodule that’'s
operational and was deployed |last year in February of '08 is the
| obbyi ng nmodule.” Some of the features used in that nodule, she
indicated, will be “carried over.”

10: 09: 21 AM

M5. WARE, in response to Chair Lynn, confirnmed that no deadlines
woul d be changed wi t hout changi ng statute.

10: 09: 47 AM

M5. WARE returned to her slide presentation. As shown on slide
3, she listed advantages to electronic filing: it is nmuch
faster; all the information that does not change fromfiling to
filing - such as nane, address, phone nunber - is stored for the

filer so that he/she does not have to enter that information
every single tinme; the filer can file from anywhere in the
world, as long as there is a conputer available; and date
verification, which is so inportant to the filer, is imediately
avai l abl e to hinfher. Ms. Ware listed some of the renote areas
of Al aska fromwhich people are currently filing.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2009



10: 12: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the system accepts an
el ectroni c signature.

M5. WARE responded that the system works through the state’'s
“MyAl aska” application, which she said would be part of the
upcom ng denonstration

10:13:10 AM

M5. WARE rel ated that another advantage of the systemis that it
allows APCC staff to create reports for public view ng much nore
qui ckly, because staff no longer has to enter data into a
separate data base before posting that data to the APOC web
site.

M5. WARE, turning to slide 4, noted that when “the | obbyist and
enpl oyer nodule” was activated in February 2008, there were
initial glitches that were subsequently worked out. She
reported that all the |obbyists’ registrations for 2009 have
been submitted electronically. She related that there are five
adm nistrative reports available to APOC wth respect to
| obbying, and, at this time, not all of them are available to

the public, because APOCC is still working through “sone data
glitches and anonalies.” However, she told the conmmttee that
what APOCC has |earned from those lessons will make version two

of Insight much better able to accommpdate “the other financia
di scl osure | aws.”

10: 14: 41 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if the next version will be an update of the
current version or “include another class of people who nust
report.”

M5. WARE answered that version two, which will be activated in
June, “wll still just have the |obbying nodule,” but it wll
have a set of features that the current version does not have.
For exanple, the updated version will streamine the process by
which a filer can nove around to various pages. Version two
will also allow APOC nore admnistrative capabilities to make

changes when needed.

10: 16: 21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if Jlegislators wll have the
option to file by “pen and ink” for the next election cycle.

M5. WARE responded that currently APOC anticipates that the

canpai gn disclosure nodule for electronic filing will be ready
sonme time in 2010. In response to a followup question, she
enphasi zed that the earliest the canpaign nodule will be ready

woul d be sone tinme in the |ate spring or sumer in 2010.

10:17:26 AM

CHAI R LYNN offered his understandi ng that anybody who chooses to
do so can file for reelection on May 2, [2009]. He said, “And
so, if I get sonething on May 2, | just keep track of it, and
t hen when we do the report, bring that into it.”

MS5. WARE answered that's correct. She said that would still be
done vi a paper.

10: 17: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if those running for election
could file before May 2.

M5. WARE replied that she does not know the answer to that off
the top of her head.

10: 18: 08 AM

M5. WARE, in response to Representative WIson, offered her
belief that there is a reference in statute that provides for
certain exceptions to having to file electronically.

10: 19: 02 AM

M5. WARE returned again to her slide presentation. She spoke to
the initial challenges APOC experienced with Insight, which are

listed on slide 5. She said there were sone database problens
which resulted in mssed deadlines and increased costs. One
exanple, she said, involved the 2008 year-end reports, which

were due in 2009. There was a problemin the database that did
not allow filers to submt their reports, which led to “a

frustration and concern in the filers.” She reiterated that the
probl ens have been worked out so that they are not repeated.
Reporting capabilities are not fully oper ati onal , but

significant headway is being nmade in that regard. For exanpl e
APCC currently has the |obbyist directory on its web site, as

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2009



well as the 2008 disclosure data for | obbyists. At present,
APOCC does not have “real-tinme disclosure” available to the
public; however, that is sonething it |ooks forward to being
able to offer.

10: 20: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON rel ated his understanding that mandatory
el ectronic reporting is only for |obbyists at this point in
time.

MS. WARE answered that’s correct.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON then said he thinks that |egislators,
al t hough strongly encouraged to do so, will not be required to
report electronically wunless such a mandate is set up in
statute.

10: 21: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he thinks that is true.

M5. WARE indicated that the topic of an exception is covered
under statute which provides for an exception “when certain
circunstances warrant an exception.” Muinicipal governnments wth
popul ati ons of fewer than 15,000 are allowed to file by paper.
In terms of current practice, the requirement for |obbyists to
file electronically is in |obbying statute and was “signed off
on by the conm ssion as an order |ast Novenber.”

10: 22: 39 AM

M5. WARE provided a live denonstration of the electronic filing
system which is outlined on slide 6. She noted that when
i npl enenting electronic filing, many states have the filer pay
for the electronic signature software. Al aska uses the MAI aska
el ectronic signature feature, which she said is probably
famliar to anyone who has filed his/her permanent fund dividend
(PFD) application electronically. The system allows the filer
to sign in securely with a user nane and password to which only
he/ she has access. She said the APCC reporting link brings the
user the electronic filing system \Wen the forthcom ng version
is installed, there will be tabs for canpaign disclosure and
| egi sl ative financial disclosure.

10: 24: 56 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2009



M5. WARE, continuing her denonstration, indicated that the
| nsight system stores forns that a filer has previously
submtted, and those forns are then available for APOCC to see
She reiterated the information regarding date and tine
recording. She pointed out an “anmend” button, which allows the
filer to make a change to data, then keeps the original as well

as the anended version. She said APOC does not see any
information until the filer has pressed the final “sign and
submt.”

10: 27: 41 AM

M5. WARE, in response to a question from Representative Seaton,
said the way to tell between an anmended page and the original is
that once a page has been anended, the “amend button” is no
| onger lighted on the original form If the filer needs to nmake
anot her anmendnent, he/she woul d have to anend the anended page.

10: 30: 00 AM

M5. WARE, in response to Representative WIson, said it is
plausible that information could be worked on and stored,
wi t hout having been subnitted. However, she noted because of

the way the law works, a |obbyist cannot start a form in the
| obbyi sts’ nodule until the first day of the nmonth in which the
report is due.

10: 31: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there would be any possibility
for a legislator to wite a check electronically on his/her
public office expense term (POCET) account and then press a
button to have that check automatically reported.

M5. WARE asked Representative Guenberg to clarify if he is
aski ng whether there would be an option of entering data in and
having that data inmediately avail able for view ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that he is thinking that
perhaps at sonme point there will be a nethod by which a person
would type a check and it would be automatically reported at
that tine.

M5. WARE i ndi cated her understanding that Chair Lynn has favored
a notion of nore imediate disclosure. She said the insight
system does not propose changing any reporting deadlines, so at
this point, because the conputer contractors are setting up

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2009



busi ness requirenents based on existing statute, if a report is
due at a certain tinme of the year, that’'s how they will build
the application. That does not preclude Representative WIlson's
remark about entering data in as contributions conme in well
before submtting the report on the day it’s due. She stated
“So, that capability certainly exists in the system and that’s
one of the advantages of electronic filing. There [are] imrense
storage capabilities, and you can enter the data in at your
convenience, and it is stored for you, and then you just sinply
open it up.”

10: 33: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated that if he wites a check, he wants
it to inmmediately show up, but that would not work with the
reporting dates. However, he pointed out that it is the
| egislature that sets up the reporting dates, so they can be
changed Chair Lynn stated that one of the purposes of today’s
hearing is to see if the wupcomng technology via APCC s
el ectronic reporting system can be integrated wth |egislation
that he would Iike to propose.

10: 34: 29 AM

M5. WARE, in response to Representative Seaton, related that the
system requires two buttons to be pushed in order to delete
information; it 1is designed that way to avoid accidenta
del eti on. Furthernore, a “back up” is done to the system
several tines a day.

M5. WARE next denonstrated the filing of a new | obbyist report
form which requires first choosing a reporting period.

10: 37: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there is an option by which a
filer could see the nost recent filing at the top.

M5. WARE answered that that kind of streamined |ook and feel is
what APOC is striving for in the next version of the system |In
response to Chair Lynn, she confirmed that |obbyists are
required by statute to submt a separate “schedule” for each

enpl oyer.
10: 39: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2009



M5. WARE, referring again to the exanple, explained that vyear-
to-date totals are automatically carried over from the |ast
report period, which is an exanple of another tinme-saving
feature in electronic filing. She said the nachine takes out
the human error factor, which should result in nore accurate
filing.

10: 41: 04 AM

M5. WARE concl uded her denonstration of electronic filing. In
response to Representative WIson, she clarified that the APCC
web site shows year-end disclosures of |obbyists, which “does a
summary |ist per |obbyist for each of his or her enployers.”

10: 42: 09 AM

M5. WARE, in response to a question from Representative Johnson
regarding contribution limts, said APOC has been neeting wth
the system contractor regardi ng canpai gn disclosure |aw, but has
“not yet gotten the full system requirenments docunent for the

other laws.” She said she cannot yet determ ne whether the
system will have the capacity to let the filer know when a
contributor has given too much noney. In response to a follow

up comrent from Representative Johnson, she stated that it is
inmportant to renenber that although an electronic filing system
provides a lot of tine-saving features and accuracy, it cannot
do everything; there nay be features that are not going to be
able to be incorporated into the system

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON encouraged Ms. Ware to at |east ask the
guestion of the programmer.

MS. WARE i ndi cated that she would do so.

10:45:19 AM

CHAIR WLSON noted that there is also a limt on how nuch noney
canpai gners can receive from out-of-state sources. She said
these issues are difficult to track; therefore, she asks her
bookkeeper to maintain that record.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN recalled that “the old progrant showed the
filer when he/she reached the limt.

M5. WARE responded that she would not know that, since the old
program was used before she becane involved with APOC

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 4, 2009



10: 46: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that “it’s absolutely right that
they need to construct the program that way,” and there should
be a check box to mark showi ng whether or not the contribution
is from soneone out of state. He indicated that the “idea of
having the limts show up” could be part of the system

10:47: 15 AM

M5. WARE returned to her presentation. As shown on slide 7, she
reiterated that version two of Insight will be deployed in June
[ 2009] . Furt hernmore, APOC expects the system requirenents and
updated cost estimates for the followng disclosure |aws:
public official financial disclosure, |legislative financial
di scl osure, and canpaign disclosure. She said APOC estinmates
the public official and legislative financial di scl osure
el ectronic filing capabilities will be available in the fall or

winter of 2009, while the electronic filing capabilities for
canpai gn deploynent is expected by late spring or sumrer of
2010. Those anticipated dates could change based on the
information that will be provided in the aforenenti oned docunent
expected this June.

M5. WARE, in response to Chair Lynn, reviewed that |egislators

can expect to electronically file their next |legislative
financial disclosure - due March 15, 2010. Canpai gn di scl osure
will be the last nodule put into electronic format, because it

is the nost conplicated, she explained.

10: 49: 57 AM

M5. WARE addressed other topics from her slide presentation by
way of answering questions from the commttee. As shown on
slide 9, she stated that there is no plan at this point for
Insight to include a link to legislators’ canpaign bank
accounts; therefore, they would “do what you currently do in
terms of your financial institution with regard to your canpaign
forms.” She reiterated that Insight will reduce the time spent
filing fornms, because of the features previously denonstrated

The system she said, will be “a one-stop shop for you to file
all of your APQOC financial disclosures.” She reiterated that
Insight will provide APCC with nmuch better capabilities in terns
of reporting to the public.

10: 50: 58 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- April 4, 2009



REPRESENTATIVE LYNN asked if there 1is any potential for
programmers to work out a way, not through Insight, for filing
to be linked to bank accounts.

M5. WARE replied, “W certainly can have that dialogue with the
programmers.”

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN clarified that he wants to know if it is
feasi ble to have such a connecti on.

10: 51: 45 AM

ANNETTE KREI TZER, Conm ssioner, Department of Admnistration,
stated, “Wth enough noney and tine, anything is feasible.” She
i ndi cated she has witten down the comments she has heard today.

10: 52: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that Conm ssioner Kreitzer knows
about his intentions to propose a related bill, and he said he
hopes that at sonme point in the future, the state could
transition “into the nore inmmediate thing.” He reiterated that
canpaign reporting dates do not need to be |imting, because

they can be changed by statute. He said he thinks “this my be
an excell ent m dway exercise.”

10: 52: 59 AM

COWM SSI ONER KREI TZER enphasi zed that the project has been a
conplicated one fraught w th disappointnents; however, it is one
of the nobst inportant projects that Enterprise Technol ogy
Services (ETS) is supporting. Everyone involved - the public,
APCC, the |obbyists, and the legislature - nust have confidence
in the project, she stated.

CHAIR LYNN clarified that it sounds like this will be a big step
forward in a process everyone wants, but he said he has an eye
to the future.

10: 53: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON highlighted that she cannot see banks
agreeing with [Chair Lynn's idea to have checking accounts
linked to an electronic filing systen]. She naned the different
accounts that exist for her husband, hersel f, and her
| egi sl ative accounts, and said the bank has put “things in the
wrong accounts.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2009



10: 54: 52 AM

CHAI R LYNN shared that sone years back, his bank nmade an error
regardi ng the personal and canpai gn accounts he held there. The
bank corrected its m stake, but Chair Lynn said he separated his
two accounts into “two different banks in different parts of
town.”

10: 55: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON related that it would be nore difficult
to pass the legislation previously referred to by Chair Lynn
than to pay for it.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN responded that that would have little to do
with the nerits of the concept.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON replied, “If your bill takes place, 1]l

just write my check to ny canpaign manager, and |’'Il have one
$10, 000 check, and you’ll never know anything | spend it on
anyway, so knock yourself out.”

10: 56: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON proffered that the question of “linking to
banks” is different from “inporting data.” He stated that nost

| egi sl ators have electronic access to their own accounts, and
having the ability to send the information from persona
conputers to APOC' s system would elimnate errors. He said this
is a systemused by TurboTax.

10: 57: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he does not care how it is done, as
long as the end result is instant disclosure.

10: 57: 38 AM

M5. WARE told Representative Seaton that [APOC] has discussed
that kind of functionality and the need for filers to be able to
cut and paste data from other forns and/or upload information
from ot her prograns being used.

COWM SSI ONER KREI TZER said she understands what Representative

Seaton is saying, and she indicated that the admnistration
woul d have a conversation regar di ng exporting finance

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2009



information out of personal prograns into the state’'s system
She said, “I don't know that this is exactly instant, but it’s
getting closer to it.”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he ultimately wants the system to work
so that when l|egislator gets a contribution check and deposits
it, it is instantly public, wthout having to count on the
honesty of any |egislator. He surm sed that the problemis not
that this is inpossible, but that there needs to be wllingness
anong those involved to work it out.

10: 59: 49 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said many places in Alaska are renpte,
whi ch neans that she may be away from honme for three weeks sone
tinmes. She said during her absence, she my receive a
contribution check, and she cannot nmeke a deposit until she is
near a bank agai n.

11: 00: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he understands that, but just wants a
deposit to be nade public as soon as the deposit can be nade.

11: 01: 09 AM

HOLLY ROBERSON HILL, Director, Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion
(APOC), Departnent of Adm nistration, proffered that the answer
to a previous query - whether or not electronic filing is
required in statute - is found in AS 15.13.040. She referred
particularly to [subsection] m which read as foll ows:

(m Information required under this chapter shal
be submtted to the conm ssion electronically, except
that the following information nmay be submitted in
clear and legible black typeface or hand-printed in
dark ink on paper in a format approved by the
commi ssion or on forms provided by the comm ssion:

(1) information submtted by

(A) a candidate for election to a borough or city
office of mayor, nenbership on a borough assenbly,
city council, or school board, or any state office,
who neets the requirements of (g)(1) - (3) of this
section; or

(B) a candidate for nunicipal office for a
muni ci pality with a population of |less than 15,000; in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- April 4, 2009



t hi s subparagraph, "municipal office" nmeans the office
of an el ected borough or city

(1) mayor; or

(ii) assenbly, council, or school board nenber;

(2) any information if the comm ssion determ nes
that circunstances warrant an exception to the
el ectroni ¢ subni ssion requirenent.

11: 02: 25 AM

CHAI R LYNN t hanked APOC for its work regarding electric filing.

11: 03: 03 AM

CHAI R LYNN di scussed the upcom ng conmmittee cal endar.

HIR 8-CONST. AM APPROP. LI M T/ M NERAL REVENUE

11: 03: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recal | ed that when HIR 8 was previously
heard, he had inquired as to whether Representative Kelly had
information on the amount currently owed to the Constitutiona
Budget Reserve Fund (CBRF). He said he subsequently obtained
information from a | egislative research report, which shows that
amount is $620, 578, 218.

11: 05: 24 AM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 11:05
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 4, 2009



